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ADDENDUM NOTICE NO. 2 
 

CALIFORNIA ALTERNATIVE ENERGY  
AND ADVANCED TRANSPORTATION  
FINANCING AUTHORITY (CAEATFA) 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL-Secondary 

CONTRACT NO. CAEATFA03-17 
Property Assessed Clean Energy  

(PACE) Loss Reserve Program 
 
 
 

March 8, 2018 
 
The following information is provided in response to questions received by CAEATFA regarding Request for 
Proposal (“RFP”) Number CAEATFA03-17, as shown below: Revisions to the RFP text will be set forth in a 
separate addendum to follow. 
 
Responses to Questions:  
 

1. Have these services previously been performed?  If so, who has performed such services? 
 
Answer:  
No, CAEATFA has not performed an audit of its participating PACE programs in the past. The details of 
such reports will be discussed and agreed upon between CAEATFA and the selected Contractor. 
 
 

2. Since the May 2014 launch of PACE, have there been any audits performed?  If so, can we get a copy of 
the prior audits? 
 
Answer: (Please see answer to Question #1.) 
No audits have been performed or requested by CAEATFA.  PACE Programs have been audited by other 
entities for separate purposes.   
 
 

3. What type of reports are requested for issuance by the auditor?  For instance, is this an attestation report 
requiring an opinion by the auditor, such as an examination? 

 
Answer:  
The scope of the report to CAEATFA will include an opinion. Please refer to RFP Section 4, item b.iii, “for 
each audit conducted, the Contractor will evaluate the Participant’s underwriting processes and controls, 
analyze the Participant’s overall compliance with Program eligibility requirements, and prepare a written 
report to CAEATFA that shall identify and explain its approach and findings, including any sampled 
financings not compliant with Program eligibility requirements.  The Contractor will also prepare a 
separate written report to provide to each applicable Participant.”  
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4. Does CAEATFA have an example of the report to be issued by the Auditor? 
 
Answer:  
No.  Details of the report will be discussed at the initial meeting between CAEATFA and the selected 
Contractor.  Since this will be the first PACE Loss Reserve Program Audit, CAEATFA will likely want as 
much detail as possible for the reader (CAEATFA staff, its Board, the public and stakeholders) to support 
the conclusions and opinions reached in the report and provide needed transparency. 
 
 

5. What standards are the Participants required to follow related to their underwriting processes? 
 
Answer:  
Requirements for PACE programs seeking to participate in the PACE Loss Reserve Program are set forth 
in Section 10081 of the Program regulations (California Code of Regulations, 4 CCR § 10081), as they 
have been amended from time to time.  
 
 

6. Can you please confirm that the DVBE program requirements have been waived for this solicitation, and 
that an incentive will not be awarded during the proposal review? 
 
Answer:  
Bidders are not required to include DVBE participation in their proposals.  However, the incentive will still 
be applied if a DVBE bids or if a bidder includes a DVBE subcontractor in its proposal. 
 
 

7. Can you please explain the difference in the Cost Proposal requiring a quote for 16 participants when 
there are 18 PACE participants? 
 
Answer:  
There were two participating PACE programs added in the last half of 2017.  The audit scope of each 
PACE program will depend on when their program was approved, whether or not they had PACE 
Financing activity, and the period of time to be reviewed. 
 
 

8. Will CAEATFA’s budget change if more participants are admitted into the Program and more audits are 
required? 
 
Answer:  
No.  The maximum limit of $450,000 for the full contract term, including optional extension, is firm. Audit 
scope and sample sizes will be adjusted accordingly to stay within budget. 
 
 

9. Are the fees capped at $150,000 per year, including the additional services mentioned in the RFP Scope 
of Work, Section 4.d, Deliverable Category 4? 
 
Answer:  
CAEATFA anticipates entering into a two-year Contract with the option, at CAEATFA’s discretion, to 
extend for one additional year.  The total Contract amount, including the two-year base period and 
optional extension, may not exceed $450,000.00.  There is no specific annual limit. It is incumbent upon 
the bidder to propose a competitive cost structure that does not exceed $450,000.00. 
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10. Is it preferred that the fees proposed be broken down into each of the 18 programs? 
 
Answer:  
No.  A flat fee would suffice.  Please note that less time may be required to audit certain PACE programs 
based on when they were approved, the number of PACE Financings grandfathered into the Program 
without being subject to the Program’s eligibility criteria, and the number of PACE Financings reported.  
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11. $150,000 per year max fee, would be $8,333 per performance audit (for 18 entities enrolled in the PACE 

Program).  Without knowing exactly what the audit plan request looks like, it’s difficult to evaluate what 
the hours required and expenses to travel would be sufficient for the $8,333 per entity enrolled in the 
program) and to create an accurate estimate/bid.  Is there someone who I can speak to in more detail 
about the RFP verbally? 
 
Answer:  
Please see answers to Questions #10 and #12.  
 
 

12. What is the timeframe (months) for conducting the on-site audits (says six months after approved audit 
plan, however, want to confirm the timeframe expected)? 
 
Answer:  
The Contractor may, at CAEATFA’s discretion, be required to conduct initial on-site audits of each 
Participant within 6 months of Audit Plan approval. After the initial Audit, the Contractor may at 
CAEATFA’s discretion, be required to arrange site visits/audits at least annually. Additionally, CAEATFA 
may require ad hoc audits as necessary. There will be flexibility in the timing of deliverables as the 
Contractor and CAEATFA work together to establish specific deliverables, responsibilities, and 
timetables.  
 
 

13. The RFP mentions that the contractor may be required to provide other financial and industry technical 
assistance; what do you anticipate that to be? 
 
Answer:  
This flexibility is included to enable CAEATFA to request additional research and investigation if issues 
arise out of the audit.  As described in the Scope of Work (RFP Section 4, item c.iii), “such other duties or 
activities … may be specifically requested in writing by CAEATFA, via separate Task Orders to be agreed 
upon by CAEATFA and the Contractor.”  
 
 

14. What period will the audit cover? 
 
Answer:  
CAEATFA will work with the selected Contractor to determine the time period covered by the initial on-site 
audits, which will reflect only the PACE programs approved to participate in the Program from the date of 
their approval into the Program. (Please see answer to Question #10.)  
 
 

15. In the Audit Plan it mentions that there will be an initial meeting. When do you anticipate this meeting to 
be held? 
 
Answer:  
The initial meeting will be scheduled by CAEATFA and the selected Contractor as soon as possible upon 
contract approval.   
 
 

16. Section 4 of the RFP lists items to be provided by each participant. Is this information already being 
provided on a regular basis to CAEATFA staff? 
 
Answer:  
No. The only information CAEATFA receives are Semi-Annual Reports listing the number and amounts of 
new PACE Financings.  The Assessor’s Parcel Numbers, principal amounts, annual assessments, 
maturity dates and origination dates are also provided each semi-annual period for all new financings. 
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17. The contractor may be required to present the audit report to the board. Where are board meetings held? 
 
Answer:  
CAEATFA Board meetings are held monthly in Sacramento, CA. The meeting schedule is available on 
the CAEATFA website at: http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/caeatfa/meeting/schedule.asp. 
 
 

18. What is the timeframe (month) for the written audit plan completion? 
 
Answer:  
As stated in section 4 of the RFP, due dates are estimated. The written Audit Plan should be delivered to 
CAEATFA within the first 90 days after contract approval. Therefore, with an estimated start date in May, 
2018, the Audit Plan would be due in August, 2018. 
 
 

19. What is the location of the 18 PACE programs operated (i.e. where the audits will be performed)? 
 
Answer:  
Audit location will vary depending on where each program’s records are located. Most programs’ records 
will likely be located in California; however, some of the programs operate nationally and their records 
may reside outside of California.  The audit firm awarded the Contract will determine the location of the 
audits during their initial planning, as well as the most cost-efficient means of obtaining access to the 
records. 
 
 

20. Minimum qualifications for proposers #3 (Section 4.B of the RFP) states that, “…firm must have 
conducted, within the last 5 years, at least 3 audits of public and/or private financing programs.”  Would 
audits of state agencies that have loan programs fall into this category? 
 
Answer:  
Yes. A firm with the specified experience auditing state agency loan programs would meet the minimum 
qualification stipulated in item #3. 
 
 

The date for submitting questions regarding RFP Number CAEATFA03-17 has passed. Should you require any 
clarifying information regarding this addendum, the contact person for this RFP is: 

Jennifer Gill 
California Alternative Energy and 

Advanced Transportation Financing Authority 
915 Capitol Mall 

Sacramento, CA 95814 
(916) 653-3033 

caeatfa@treasurer.ca.gov 


